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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIVADH, KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARARIA

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statemenis of Alaa Educational Company — a Saudi Toint Stock
Company — (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries the {collectively the “Group™), which comprse the
consolidated staterment of financial position as at 31 July 2021, the consohdated statements of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, conselidated siatement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opimion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present farly, in all material respeets, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 July 2021, and its consolidated financial performance and
i3 consolidated cash flows for the vear them ended in accordance with Inmternational Financial Reporting
Standards that are endorsed i the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and proncuncements issued
by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants [SOCPA),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intenational Stendards on Aoditing that are endorsed in the
Ringdom of Saudi Arabia, Our responsibilitics wnder those siandards are further deseribed in the Awditors
BEesponsibilities for the Audit of the consobidated finaneial stilements section of our report. We are independent
fromm the Growp in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia that are relevant o our audic of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibalities i accordance with these requirements. We beheve that the sudit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a bagis for our opinien

Kev Aundit Matters

Rey audil matters arg those maiters that, in owr professional judgment, were of most sigmiflicance i our audii
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matiers were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
nol provide a separie opinicn on (hese matiers,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIYADH, KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABLA

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key Awdit Matters (continued)

ey Audit Matters

' How our andit addressed the keyv sudit matter

Recognition of educational services revenue

With reference to the accounting policy relating 1o the
revenue recognition, a5 well as note (23) relating 1o
revenue disclosures, the Group's revenues for the year
coded 31 Juby 2021 amounted to SKE 280 milllon,

Bevenue 1= a  key indicator of performance
measurement, resulting in inherent risks in the
revenue  recognilion  process  through  revenue
overstatements.  Bevenwe 5 recopnized  when
educational  services are provided (o registered
students.

Due 1o the inherent risks in the revenue recopnilion
process and the significance of revenue value of
educational scrvices, revenue recoginiation
educational services was considered as a key audit

of

We have performed the following procedures among

other things:

*  Assessing the appropriateness of the Group's
revenue  recognition  policy under IFRS 15
“Revenue From Contracts with Cestomers.”

* Assessing the design and implementation and
fested the operating effectiveness of conlrols
relating 1o processes Over Fevenue recoEnition,

#  Performing a st of a sample of recorded revenue
fransactions and compared them with supporting
documents to venify the existence of recorded
EN eI,

* Performing analytical reviews based on the
number of students and approved fees for the

educational  process o evalume  the
rcasonablencess of the amount of revenue per the
consolidated financial statement.

* Inquircd from the management represcniatives
regarding froud awareness and the existence of
any actual fraud cases.

*  Assessing the appropriatencss of the disclosures
made in the conselidated Onancial stalements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED,)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A SAUDLIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH, KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA

REPORT ON THE AUDT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key Aundit Matters (continued)

Kev Audit Matters

| How our aundit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill impairment

With reference o the accounting estimates and
assumpiions relating o impairment of goodwill as
well as note (81 relating 1o goodwill disclosures.

The financial statements included a capitalized
poodwill of SR 4247 million as af 31 July 2027,
which represents the merease in the value of the
acquired and merged companics to the net asscts
ransferred o the Group, The Group (esis the
impairment on an annual basis as required by TAS 36
Tmparment of Asscis’. The mpaimment for 2021 has
been tested atl the cash generating unii level for the
Ciroup.

Determination of the recoverable amount of an assel
or cash-gencrating unit requires the management o
make significant assumplions.

We considered imparment of poodwill to be a key
audit matter due 1o the high level of estimates and
assumptions used in determination of impairment of
poodwill,

We have performed the following procedures among

other things:

o  Obtained an understanding of the methodology
pdopled by the management in determining the
cash generating unil and existence of impairment
of goodwill and assessing whether  this
methodology is consistent with the requirements
of 1AS 36 and these used in this industry,

#  Assessed the desipn and implementation and
tested the operatimg cffectiveness of conirols
relating 1o processes over  impairment  of
poodwill.

» Assgssed the koy assumptions wsed by
management related to revenue growth rate. gross
profit margin, and long-ierm growth rate, with
taking into account current and firure economic
conditions of he cash-generating units. We also
compared the key assumptions o the previous
factual reswulis,

o Assessed the rehiability of management's forecast
through a review of actual performance against
forecasts used by management;

* lIovolved our specialists to check the key
assumplions used by management in caloulatng
the value in use, We also condacied the sensitivily
analysis related to these key assumprions.

& Aszessing the appropriatensess of the disclosures
made in the consolidaied financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH, KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matters {continued )

Key Aundit Matters

. How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Acquisition of subsidiary

During 2021, the Company acquired [00%% of the
share capital of Elm International Schools Company
as of 1 August amounting SR 40 million. Goodwill of
SR 397 Million was recopnized as 2 result of this
acquisition and represenis the excess of the lotal
consideration paid over the fair value of dentifiable
nel assets acquired of SR YATAYE In 2021, the |
Company acquired 52% of the capifal of the Wasat |
Mational Traming and Education in ecxchange for
emptying a plot of land owned by the Group under
deed No, 61012103192 in favor of the Wasat National
Traiming and Education with a book value of SR 20,1
million. Goodwill was recogmzed in the amount of SE
6 million az a resull of the acquistlion, represent the
excess of the total value of the vacated land over the
fuir value of the net identifiable assets acquired was
represented by an amount of SR |9 million,

This transaction is in the scope of IFRS 3 Business
Combinations which requires significant judgment in
determuning the fair values at the sequisinon-date of
the adeniifiable  asscls  acquired and  Liabalifies
assumed,

Management has engaged independent valuers 1o
assist them in detecrmining the fair values of the net
assets acquired at the scquisition date. This includes
the identification and evalvation of intangible assels
that require judgmendt,

The key estimates applied in determining fair values
generally include discount rates, revenue growth rates,
gross margins and the uscful life of assets. Any
significant chanpes in these key estimates could cause
changes 1o the far value of the assets and Labilities
acquired, mcluding intangible asscts, that directly
affiect the recogmbon of goodwll.

We considered this a key andit matier because of the
significant judgments and csimates that were applicd
in determining the fair value an the acquisition date of |
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities incumred.

Refer to note {2-b) accounting policies and note (33)
Acquisition of subsidiary.

Wi have performed the following procedures among

oiher things:

o We evalunted the design and implementation of
controls over ihe aequisition,

» Obtaining and reviewing relevant contracts
related o acguisitions  and  evaluzting
management actions to identify mtangible assets:

»  Assessing the competence, capabilities  and
objectivity of the management expert, obiaining
an understanding of that experts work and
evaluating the appropriatencss of that expert's
work as evidence for the audit of the related
psseriion;

» W evaluated the disclosures in the consolidated
fimancial siatements o determine whether they
arg in compliance with International Financial
Reportimg Standards ([FRS)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUETY)

TOTHE SHAREHOLDERS OF ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOUK COMPANY)
RIYADH, KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA

REFORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Other Information

Other information consists of the mformation included i the Group's 2021 annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other
information in its annual report, It 15 expected that the annual report will be available to us after the date of this
audil report.

Chr opanion on the conselidated financial siatemenis does nod cover the cther mfomation and we do nod express
any form of assuranee conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is o read the other
information identificd above and, in deing so, congider whether the othor information is matenally inconsistent
with the concolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be
materially misstated. IF, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 12 a0 material misstatement
of this other information, we are required o reporn that Fact. We have nothing © report in this regard.

M anagement is responsible for the other Infomation. The other Information comprizses the information included
in the anmual report byt does not include the consolidated financial statemnents and our auditor's report thereon.
The annual report is expected to be made avallable to us afler the date of this auditor's report.

Onther Matter
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2020, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 27 October 2020,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consildated Financial
Statements

Manapement is responsible for the preparation and Fair presentation of the conselidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reportng Standards, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saud: Arnbia
and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by the SOCPA and Companies Law and the Company s By-
Laws for such internal control 2z management determines iz necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material missiafement, whether due to fraud or crror,

In preparing the consolidated fnancial stnements, management is responsible for assessing the Group ability
o continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related 10 going concem and using the gomg
concem basis of accounting unless the management gither intends to liguidate the Growp or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to doe so.

Those clarged with governance, i.¢. the Board of Directors, are responsible for oversecing the Group financial
reparting rocess

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Chur objectives are (o obiain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidaied Onancial staiemenis as a whaole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o 1ssuc an auditor's report that Includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance’ 15 a high level of assurance, but is not @ puarantee that an awdit conducted
in accordance with Tnternational Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will
abways detect a matenal misstatement when it casis, Misstatements can anse from fraed or ecmor, amd are
considered material if, ndividually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to nfluence the economic
decizions of users taken on the basis of these consolidaied financial siatemens.

Asg part of an audit in accordance with the International Standards on Awditing that are endorsed 1o the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepricism hroughout the audit
We also:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(A SAUDLJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH, KINGDOM OF SAUDI ARABIA

REFORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditor's Responsibilities Tor the Audil of the Consolidated Financial Statements {continuwed)

o [dentifiy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether duc
to fraud or eoror, design and perform asdit procedures responsive o those nsks, and obtan sudit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriaie o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuliing from fraud & higher than for one resulung from ervor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnde of mternal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order te design audit procedures that arg
appropriate m the circumstances, but not for the purpose of cxpressing an opinion on the offectivencss of
the internal control.

» Evaluatc the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of accouniing esiimaics
and related disclosures made by the management.

#  Conclude on the appropriateness nfnun'agemﬁn!.’g uze of the E0ing ConCern hasis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncentainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to confinue as a going concern. [ we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our aoditor’s report to the related
disclosures 1 the conselidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, 1o modify our
opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audil evidence obiained up 10 the date of our auditors” report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group's to cease to continue 85 a going concem.

¢  Evaluaie the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statemenis, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying trangactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the establishmenis or
commercial activitics within the Group. To express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for dirccting, supervising and implementing the Group review process. We remain solely
responsible for the awdit opimion.

We commumicate with those charged with sovernanee regardma, among other matters, the planned seope and
timting of the audit and significond audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inlemal contrel that
we identify duning our andit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and other maiiers thai
may reasenably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, with relevant safeguards.

Among the matters that we communicate with those charged with govemance, we identify those matters that
were of most imperiance when auditing the conselidated financial statements for the currenl year, and therefore
these matters are the key audit matiers. We desenbe these matters in our report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter, or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we believe that the
matier shouldgnet be communicated in our meporl because the adverse consequences of domg so0 would
reasonabiy ;
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT DF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 July 2021

(Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

MNote 31 July 2021 31 July 2020

ASSETS
Non-current asscis
Property and equipment b 495,142,467 499,583,758
Investment properties 7 37.419,722 37,752,049
Intangible assets 8 415,419,811 377,577,329
Right-of-use assets 9 195,355,802 259,028,542
Total non-current assets 1,253,337,802 1,173,942.078
Current assels
Inventories 1,041,847 B3 452
Account receivable 10 57.315,556 76,924,636
Prepavments and other receivables 11 15.5842,979 14,526,429
Due from a related party 12-1 8,375 =
Cash and cash equivalents 13 7,498,833 2,354 383
Total current assets 91,717,5%0 04 648 900
Total assets 1,345,055,392 1.268,590,978
Share capital 14 0, D, R A0, CR00 0D
Share premium 14-1 209,594,040 208,594 000
Statulory reserve 15 34,849,260 31,142,800
Actuarial reserve (7.686,781) (6, 313,678)
Retained eamings 107,983,937 114,623,797
Equity attributed to shareholders 744,740,416 749,048,919
MNon-control ling equity 10,651,773 -
Total equity T55.392,189 749,048,919
LIABILITIES
MNon-current liahilities
Lease liabilities on right-of-use assets 0 300,630,208 257,890,737
Borrowings 17 172,575,968 41,426,855
Deferred revenus of government granis 18 1,442,813 1,B99 B8]
Employees’ post employment benefits 19-2 33,220,577 33,363,510
Total non-carreat labilities S07,869, 566 334,580,933
Current Liabilities
Borrowings 17 31L.627,5T0 115,903,299
Lease liabilities on right-of-use assets 9 21,779,897 23,320,268
Revenue received in advance 0 6,793,108 5,448,384
Accounts payable 961,243 5030022
Deferred revenue of govermment grants 8 457,068 512,712
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 21 18,433,021 23,776,288
Provision for Zakat 12-C 1,592,679 1,810,241
Due to & related party 12-2 148,961 9,139 862
Total current liabilities B1,793,637 | 84,961,076
Total Habilities £89,663,203 519,542 059
Total equity and liabilities 1,345,055.392 |, 268,500,978
Contingent liabilities and capital commitments 29

Chiel linancial OfMicer Chiel Executive Officer

de|Na m&;

The accompanying notes | through 35 form an intégral pam of these conso nr

ed financial statements.



i
&

ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 July 2021

[(Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

Note 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Revenue 13 280,042,431 336,376,934
Cost of revenue 14 (204,675,501} (220,121,705
Gross profit TE 26,930 116,255,229
General and administrative expenses 25 (24,903 087) (21,495277)
Impairment of accounis receivable 10 (693,663) {9,010 %600
Other income 26 8,640,023 13,748,941
Operating profit 58,370,203 99,497,933
Finance costs 27 {20,260,795) (21,889,153)
Met income for the vear before Zakod 38,109,408 TT.508,780
Zakat 32-C (1,071,761) 1,809,700}
Net income for the year 37,037,646 75,799,080
Mot income / (loss) for the vear attributed to:
Shareholders in parent company 37,064,600 75,709 080
Mon-controlling equity {26.954)
_ 37,037,646 75,799,080
..a-“":.”fl Basic and diluted earning per share:
5 Basic and diluted earnings per share as per
income for the year attributable to the 78 0,93 1,89

shareholders of the Company

Addel Mader

The accompanying notes 1 through 35 form an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements.



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 July 2021

{ Expressed in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Mote 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Met income for the vear 37,037,646 75,799,030

LI LEmY ) [P E ThLLA S

Actuarial (losses) on re-measurement of employees’ post

employment benefits 1%-2 (3,974} (6, 195.445)

Adjustments (1,093.917) .

Total comprehensive income for the yvear 35.937,755 69,603,635

Ttnl comprehinsye income for the year attributed to:

Shareholders in parent company 15,915,559 69 a3 635

Mon-controlling IX1% =
__?’ 35937755 69,603,635

/

Chief financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
w Ibrahim A]:y Tari ahi

The accompanying notes 1 through 35 form an integral part’of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 July 2021

{Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

Cash Mows from operating activities

Met income fior the year befiore Zakat

Adjustments for:

Depreciation property and equipment

Depreciation investment property

Amortization of infangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Gain on sale of property and equipment

{Reverse) / provision for impairment of receivables
Impairment of inventories

Finance costs

Provision for emplovees’ post employment benefits
Modification gain for leases on right-of-use asset
Actuarial adjustments

Chanpes in operating assets and labilities
[nventories

Trade receivable

Prepayments and other current assets

Accounts payable

Revenue received in advance

Due from a related party

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Due 1o a related party

Cash generated from operating activities
Employees’ post employment benefits paid

ZLakat paid

Met cash generated from operating activities
Cash Mows from investing activities

Additions to property and equipment and projects in progress
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Met cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries, net cash
acquired

Met cazh used in investing activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Lease liabilities paid

Finance cost paid

Deferred government grant revenue

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Mon-cash transactions

Chiefl Exccytive Officer

Hoje 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
38,109,408 77.608,780

b 16,087,971 16,271,705
T 2.7 332,327
8 373,755 392,720
) 30,019,741 25,648 488
(49,081) (106,694)

10-1 693,663 9,010,960
. 198,940

27 20,260,795 21,889,153
19-2 6,222,165 4,331,400
226 (1,91747TH T
(1,093.917) -
109,039 378 | 55,577,719
(138,395 (211,727
23588975  (30,264,682)
(10,077,075) 17.578.242
{4,238,744) {1,466,718)
(735,331) (2,422.054)

(£375) -

(6,147 461) {12,923,554)
(10,355,901 ) (5,793,034)
100,827,071 113,074,252

19-2  (8,496,219) (6,566,635)
12-C __(1,956,760) (1.67F158)
20.374,072 104,834 459

] (9,356,172) {15,175,264)
0,701 183,000

33 _ (38,792,221 =
{48,088.693) {14,992.264)

17 259,852 889 106,928,543
17 (214,704,899)  (132,655,954)
(23,280,806) (15,396,330
(18,535401)  (12.885358)

18 (512,712) {566,220)
16 (40,000,000) (39.925.809)
(37,180.929)  (94,501,128)
5,104,450 {4,658,933)

2 83 7,053,216

3 7,498,833 2,394,383

32

q

in Othman Al Qa

Chief financial Officer v :
accompanying nofes | through 35 form an intagral par of these consolidated financial statements.




L

ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2021

{Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

LECAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Atsa Educational Company (the “Company™) is a Saudi joint stock company, incorporated under the
Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and was registered in Riyadh under
Commercial Registration number 1010186435 dated 10 Rabi® 1 1424H (corresponding to 11 May 2003),
ks a saudi joint stock company under the Ministerial Resolution Ne, (71/s) on 10 Rabi' 1 1431H
(corresponding to 24 February 2010),

Om 2% Thul-Qi"dah | 440H (corresponding 1o 31 July 2019), the Company's shares were listed and started
trading on Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) under the code (4292),

The principal activities of the Company include the establishment of national and international schools,
kindergarten, primary, middle and secondary schools for boys and girls (general and memorization) and
colleges and universities in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and abroad, establishing, managing and
maintaining training centers purchasing existing schools and educational and training facilities, and
developing and managing them .owning, managing and operating educational and training institules
owning and managing vocational training centers, and establishing, owning and managing special
education schools. The company carries out its activities in accordance with the applicable regulations
and after obtaining the necessary licenses from the competent authorities.

The Company’s head office is located in Rivadh city and its efficial address is as follows:
P.O. Box 87527

Riyadh 11632

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

in accordance with the Company's By-Laws, the fiscal year of the Company commences at 1 August and
ends at 31 July of each year.

The Company operates through it following branches:

Branch Name CR No.
Al-Rowad Schools (1zdihar branch) 1010362199
Al-Rowad Schools (Al Rawabi branch) 1010275978
Al-Rowad Schools (Al Mansoura branch) 10103597500
Al-Rowad Private School (Al Rawda branch) 1010203258
Al-Rowad Schools {Ishbilivah branch} 110469725
Al-Rowad [shkilivah International Schools, Ataa branch 1010450854
Al Fikr Privaie School 1010192540
Middle East International School 1010192541
Mew Middle East International School 1010230798
Modern Middle East Intemational School 1010352008
Al Bulaymanivah International Private School 10196919
Branch of Ata Educational Company for Maintenance and Operation 1010452144
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2021

{ Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

The following subsidiaries in which the Group directly or indirectly owns {collectively referred to as the
“Group™):

Effective sharcholding
Subsidiary Country of Domicile  Legal form 31 Juby 2021 31 July 2020
Al Nokhbah Educational  Kingdom of Saudi
Conpiny Aiibit LLC 1005 1005
Al Cruba Imtemational ; i
Company for Education  ingdom of Saudi . 100% 100%
g Arabia
Services
Al-Rowad Company for  Kingdom of Saudi 00%
Supporting Services Arabia L : L
Elm [nternational Kingdom of Saudi
Schools Compay Arshiz LLC {2 -
Wasat National Traiming  Kingdom of Saudi LLE o }

and Education Company  Arabia

The Mokhbah Educational Company (s a limited liability company, established under the Companies Law
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registersd in Riyadh under Commercial Registradion No.
1010231261 on 26 Rabi Al-Awwal, 1428 H corresponding to 14 April 2007,

The principal activity of the Company is to own private schools for all levels — kindergarten / /preparatory
primary/ middle/ secondary for boys and girls, wholesale and retail trade in educational materials and
aids, and exercises its activity after obtaining the necessary licenses from the competent authorities,

The company operates through Al Mokhba Educational Schools, Al Khar) Branch, Al MNahda District,
which holds commercial registration No. 101 1010525 isswed by the city of Riyadh on 15 Jumada Al
Awwal 1425H corresponding to July 3, 2004,

Al Cruba International Company for Education Services is a limited liability company, established under
ihe Companies Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Ambia and regisiered in Rivadh under Commercial
Registration Mo, 1010259834 on 25 Dhual-Hijjah 1429 H cormesponding 1o 24 December 2008,

The principal activity of the Company 15 to establish American curriculum schools, establish manages and
operate international schools, language and translation institutes educational training cenfers, private
institutes and colleges, and computer centers.

Al-Rowad Company for Supporting Services iz a limited liability company established under the
Companies Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered in Riyadh under Commercial Registration
Ma, 1010292500 on 19 Muharram 1432 H corresponding (o 25 December 2010,

The principal activity of the Company is in general contracting for buildings, establishing schools
operating school canteens, and trading in stationery, furniture and building materials.

On 22 Jumada Al-awwal 1439 H corresponding to 7 February 2018 the Company opened a new branch
and registered in Rivadh under Commercial Registration Mo, 1010933937 and the principal activity of
the branch is in maintenance and cperation.
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2021

{Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Elm International Schools Company 15 a limited hability company, established under the Companies
Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered in Riyadh under Commercial Registration No.
1010218835 on Rabi® Al-Thani 3, 1427H (corresponding to May 1, 2006).

The company's main activity is pre-school education Kindergarten with a national and international
curriculum, operating independent schools teaching kindergarten with a national and international
curriculum, primary education for male and female students with a national and international curriculum
operating  independent schools, primary education with a natienal and  international
curriculume intermediate education for male and female students with & national curriculum and
imternational, operating independent schools, intermediate education, with a national and international
currigulum, secondary education for male and female students, with a national and imfernational
curriculum operating independent schools, secondary education with a national and international
curriculum, mixed intermediate education, including community schools, mixed secondary education
incleding community schools, institutes for teaching languages and conversation skills, cemters for
memaorizing the Moble Cur'an and the Moble Hadith, training in the use of computers and supplementary
programs, adminisirative training institutes, electrontc iraining, institutes of teaching Arabic for non-
native speakers, institutes Teaching Arabic calligraphy, academic advising services, private educational
supervision and traiming ceniers,

The company operaies through the Elm International Schools Company branch, which holds a
commercial registration number 1010393369 issued in the city of Rivadh on | Rabi' al-Akhir 1435H
corresponding o February 1, 2014,

During 2021, the Company acquired Wasat Mational Training and Education Company a limited liability
company, established under the Companies Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered in Riyadh
under Commercial Registration No. 1010192295 dated Shawwal 26, 1424 H (corresponding to December
20, 2003)

The company's main activity is primary education for male and female students with a national
curriculum intermediate education for male students with a national curriculum, secondary education for
male students with a national curriculum, mixed middle education including community schools, the
operation of independent schools. secondary education with a national curriculum.

The company operates through the branch of Wasat National Training and Education Company, which
holds & commercial registration number 1010949634 issued in the city of Riyadh on Rajab 11, 1439 H
corresponding to March 28, 2018.

In reference to the events related to the spread of the Corona virus (Covid=19) and its repercussions on
the business sectors locally and infernationally, the group s committed 1o implementing what was
stipulated in the decisions issued recently by the competent autharities, The group has taken the necessary
measures to ensure the health and safety of the group’s employees and contribute to limiting the spread
of the epidemic, and the group also seeks to bepefit from the initistives and decisions adopted and
presented by the Kingdom's government in order to mitigate the negative effects of Covid-19 on private
secior companies.

The Group was affected like other educational companies during the year ending on July 31, 2021, due
io the difficulty in determining the time period of the epidemic, it i currently difficult for the Groap to
determineg the Onancial impact of the epidemic, however, the Group will continue o follow developments
in thas regard and will reflect any reguired changes in fulure reporting periods.



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2021

(Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Applied accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements that are issued by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants
(SOCPA). The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION:

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statementz of the parent company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group™ as disclosed within note (1), Accordingly, comprises of the
financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries as at 31 July 202 1. Subsidiaries are entities
which are controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
witriable returns from its involvernent with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through
its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

* Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ahility to direct the relevant
activities of the investes)

#  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its imvolvement with the investee, and

* The ability to use its power over the invesiee to affect its refurns

When the Group maintains less than the majority of voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumsiances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

* The contractual arrangement with the other voting holders of the investes
* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

* The Group’s veting righis and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it contrals an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes o one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obfaing control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses ifs control over the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed during the year
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that the Group gains contral until the
date the Group ceases to control over subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of consolidated comprehensive income are aftributed to shareholders
of the parent company of the Group and to the non-¢ontrolling inferesis, even if this resulis in the non-
controlling interesis having a deficit balance, When necessary, adjustments aré made 10 the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting policies,
All intra-group asset and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of controd, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it

*  Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilitics of the subsidiary
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controdling interests
Drerecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received.

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

* Recognizes any surplus or deficit in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Reclassifies the parent company’s share of components previously recognized in the comprehensive
income to consolidated statement of profit or loss or retained earmings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities,



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Compoeny)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2021

(Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Bazis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for cases whers
international financial reporting standards require another basis for measurement as disciosed in the
accounting policies in note Mo, (3} of these to the accompanying consolidated financial stalements,

As required by the Capital Market Authority (“CMA™) through its circular dated 16th October 2016, the
Group shall apply the cost model to measure the property and equipment, iInvestment properties, and
intangible assets upon adopting the IFRS for three vears starting from the IFRS adoption date. And have
been posiponed until 31 December 2021,

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated Mnancial statements are presented in Saudi Rivals, which is the functional currency
of the Group.

Use of estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements required management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts,
liabilities, revenues, and expenses, Actual resuliz may differ from these estimates.

The significant estimates made by management when applying the Company's socounting policies and
the significant sources of estimafion uncertainties were the same as thoze shown in the last annual
financial statements.

Az explained in note 1 above, the Group has reviewed the main sources of estimates of unceriainly that
have been disclosed in the last anneal financial statements against the backdrop of the Covid-19
pardemic, Management will continue to monitor the siteation and any required changes that will be
reflected in future reporting periods.

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company's ability 1o continue as & going
concern and is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt on the Company™s abality to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial siatements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

International Financial Reporting Standards, Interpretations of the International Fimancial
Reporting Interpretations Committeec and new acconnting

On May 28, 2020, the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 16 Lease Contracts as a practical matter, a
lessee may choose not 1o assess whether 8 COVID-19 related rent reduction from the lessor is an
amendment 1o the lease . A lessee making this selection accounts for any change in lease payments
resulting from the rent reduction related to COVID-192 in the same manner as it would interpret the change
under IFRS 16, if the change was not an amendment to the lease.

The practicality applies only to fare reductions that occur as a direct result of COVID-19 and only if all
of the following conditions are met:

a) The change in lease payments results in an amended lease consideration that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the lease consideration immediately prior to the change.

by any reduction in rent payments affects only payments due commencing on or before 30 June 2021 (the
rent reduction will satisfy this condition if it results in a reduction in rent payments on or before 30 June
2021 and an increase in rent payments after 30 June 2021); And

¢) There is no material change in the other terms and conditions of the lease contract.

In the current financial year, the Group has applied the amendment to IFRS 16 from its effective date.
Impact on accounting for changes in lease payments applied for the exemption. The Group has applied
the practical expedient retrospectively o all pay culs that meet the conditions in IFRS 16:46b, and has
ol adjusted the prior period figures.

1o



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

KOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2021

{Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

International Financial Reporting Standards, Interpretations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committes and new acconnting (continued)

The Group benefited from exemptions from lease payvments on lease contracts amounting to 1,917,479
S5B. The assignment of lease payments amounting fo 1,917,479 SR was accounted for as negafive
variable lease payments in the consolidated statement ol profit or loss, see Note (26). The Group
derecognised the portion of the lease obligations tha was canceled by foregoing lease payments, in
gceordance with the requirements of IFRS 16,

Several other new amendments to the standards, which are listed below, became effective during the
yedr, which do not have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Effective for
Ameadm
e 'E::l b Description -::;;‘: FEars Summairy of the amendment
on or after

The amendmenis pravided a new definition of material
and clarified that materiality will depend on the nature

IAS | ond TAS & ﬁ'::'lm of ;UI;;J“ or magnktade of information, either individually or in
combination with other infermation, in the contexd of the
financial statements,

The amendment clarifies that to be considered a business,

an integrated set of activities and assets must include, at

. . & minimum, an input and a substantive process that,

IFRS 3 E:j;__'::n o ;;;Tﬂ} together, significantly contrituste to the ability to create

output, Furthermore, it clarifics thet o business can exist
without including all of the inputs and processes needed
ko create outputs.

Amendments 1o

references

Concephaal
Eiyhed ¥t PR The revised Concepiual Framewark incledes some now
Coneeptual Standards and oF ; |

¥ 1 January concepts, updated definitions and recognition criteria for

Framework for updated definitéons D s and Eahbilii nd clarifi g i
Fi ial i recogsiition © BSEE aabilities and clarifies some imporian
Reporting criteria  fior  asseds HeHEER

amd liabilities and

clarifies SO

Amporant concepls

A fundamental review and reform of major interest rate

benchmarks is  being undertaken globally. The
E‘:’FEEL;‘S i B“’m"'mﬂﬂ“’hml ;;;”“"—"’ International Accounting Standards Beard ("LASE"™) is
engaged im a two-phase process of amending its guidance
[0 assist in 4 smoother transition away from IBOR.

These amendments modify specific hedge accounting
requiremenis toa allow hedge accounting 1o continue for
nffected hedges during the period of uncertainty before
the hedged items or hedging instruments affected by the
WT_FESR? I;‘ I;:.EEJ“; [E"::E;::fﬂm | Janpary  clrment inh:n:iut rate benchmarks are amended as a result
ik IFRIS 1% — Phase 3 21 of the on-going |_r|t:rl.1't rafe I:-:rl_:hma.rk rl.-fnr{ns. The
amendments also introduce new disclosure reguiremets
ta IFRS T for hedging relationships that are subject o the
exceptions intreduced by the amendments o IFR5 9
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yvear ended 31 July 2021

{ Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

BASIS OF FREPARATION (CONTINUED)

International Financial Reporting Standards, Interpretations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee and new acconnting (continued)

The amendments to IFRS 16 “Leasing Contracts™ in relation to the response to the effects of Covid-19
on lessees added a practical means of accounting treatment, as the International Accounting Standards
Board issued amendments to [FRS 16 that allow the lessee to choose what If the effects of COVID-19
are to be modified on the relevant contract, entities that apply the amendments to IFRS 16 must disclose
that they have applied the modifications, and must disclose whether they have used the practical means
of accounting freatment.

The management believes that the impact of these amendments is not material on the consolidated
financisl statements of the group for the year ended July 31, 2021, with the exception of the amendments
to [FRS Mou (16) “Lease Contracts™ in response to the effects of Covid-19 on the lessees.

Intermational Financial Reporting Stundards and Interprefations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee and new accounting amendments that have mot vet been
applied

The Group has not zpplied the following new and revised IFRSs that are not yet effective:

Effective for
Amendments to ammusl yesrs
standard [kescription beginning on ar Summary of the amendment
"The aimendmints specily that the *eost of fulfilling
& vontract conspriza the ‘custs thal relate dinsctly o
= Onerpus  Contmets { Jam the comrnct, These amendments apply o conbraxts
LAS 3T Cost of Fulfiling a mﬂlﬂﬁ for which the entity has pot ver falillled &l dis
Cuniruct obligatioms & the begirming of the snnaal reporing
pericd in which the entity firt spplies the
amepdmenis.
The emendisent &2 whole updated IFRS 3 50 that
[FRS 3 g:::r:m | Fr:;-:uulr’t: ;‘;gm I refiers o the 20018 Concepoual Framewark insiead
of the 1980 Framewnork.
The smendment has clarified what is meant by a
right o defer setthoment, that a right 1o deler myos
R g al the emd of the reporting period, tha
o tﬁﬁ:ﬂ(lmu :-.: 1 Fanuary clussification is unaffected by the likelihood that an
Mot | P entity will exercise s deferml right and that only 1f

an embedded derivative in 2 convertible liakilsny is
itself an equity mstrumenl the werms of & libility
ool mot fempact its classifecation

[FES 16: The amendmenl removes the illusration
of the reimbursement of leasehold ohghovenents
[FRS ?: The amendroent clarifies that in apphy ing
e “I0 per conl’ %esl w0 Bssess wholker o
derecogndze a financial labiliy, an estity meludes

Annaal Improvemess
IFRS 16, IFRS 9, 1AS o IFRS Sndards L JBnuary

4| and [FRS | WI0_2018 20 only fees paid or received batween e eaity (the
bosrower) and the kender, The amendment &5 1o be
applied  prospectively o medifications  and
exchanges that ocour on or after the dae the entity
firs2 applies the amendmens
R The smendmeniz w IFRS 10 and LAS 28 deal with
i:::;' 'l.“.nnnl Inl bution :: sstuaions where there iz a sale or condribastion of
IFRE 10, [AS 28 I ; et s A wasels between an imvestor and 115 misocinle of joint
e e e s venture S{nﬂiﬂa:allz.'_. the smendmends siwie that
Vet gairs ar loeses resnlting from the loss of contrl of
& subidiany.
The amwendments prohibit deducling from the cost
Properly, Plant and af & item of property, pland and equipmenl any
IAS 16 Equipment  Proceeds | Jamuary procecds from selling items peoduced before that
befome 0 amsel g avallable for use.  Additonally, the
Intended [l snendments also elarily (he meaning af Yesting
'whether an ssset 1z Minctioning propealy

Management enticipates that these new standards interpretations and amendrments will be adopted in Ih.t Ciroup™s
finanmcial satements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these interpretations and amendments may
have no material impact on the consolidsted fnancial gatements of the Group im the period of inisal application.

12



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2021

(Expressed in Saudi Riyvals unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to the current year's presentation, The following isa
summary of the significant accounting applied by the group:
3-1 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated siatement of financial position based on
currentnon-current classification. An assei is current when it is:
*  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
* ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reponting period; or
*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or wsed to seftle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporing period.

All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

A lisbility is current when:

It is expected to be setiled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of irading;

It iz due to be zeitled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

- - L -

The Croup classifies all other liabilities as non-current liabilities.

3-1 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asse1 or paid 1o settle a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

*  |n the principal market for the asset or liability; or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group, The fair value of an
aszet or a liability iz measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
assel of Hability, assuming that market panicipanis a<t in their economic best interest

Fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes into account a market participanis® ability to
generate economic benefits by using the assel in i3 highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in ifs highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficiem
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs,

All azsets and habilities for which fair value 15 measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial

statemeénts are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities can be
obtained at the measurement dafte.

Level 2: Yaluastion technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valee
measurement is directly observable (such as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable (unobservable inputs),
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3-2 Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidaied financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Group determings whether transfers have ocourred berween levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significamt to the fair value
micasurement a a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Group has determined the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, and
o Non-recurring measurement.

AL each reporting date, the Group analyzes the changes in the values of asseis and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents, The Group also compares the change in the fiir
value E each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy
as explained above.

3-3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, current accounts, deposits with banks and other short-
term highly hquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, which can be readily
converted into a specified amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and
are available for the Group's use.

34 Inventories

Inveniories are composed of textbooks, stationery and school uniforms, and are recorded af the lower of
cost and met realizable value, Wet realizable value is the difference between estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method.

The Group recognizes, where necessary, impairment of carrying value at the difference between carrying
value and net realizable value for slow-moving and obsolete inventories under cost of revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3-8 Avcount recelvables

A mounts due from parents for services performed in the ordinary course of the Group's business and the
receivable does not bear interest. 1T credit exceeds normal credit terms, accounts réceivable are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, Atthe end of each reporting period, the carrying
amounts of accounts receivable and other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that the amounts are not recoverable. In this case, the impairment loss is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Also, see Note 3.23(2).
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- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3-6 Grovernment grant

LCiovernment grants are recognized where there is reasonsble assurance that the grant will be received and
all amached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized

i% income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which are intended to compensate by the
Group, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful
life of the related asset.

When the Group receives non-monetary grants, the assetf and the grani are recorded in aggregate at
nominal value and transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the asset, based on the consumption pattern of the benefits of the underlying asset at equal annual
installments. When borrowings or similar subsidies are provided by governments or related institutions
af an interest rate below the prevailing interest rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as a
government grant end recorded under non-current liabilities in the financial position as deferred
government grant,

3-T Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recognized initially at the cost of acquisition, including any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets 10 the location and condition necessary for them to operate in the
manner intended by the Group's management. These assets are subsequently messured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the major components of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items of property and equipment. Depreciation 15 charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate the costs of the related assets
after deducting the residual values over the estimated useful lives of each item of property, plant and
equipment. The following are the estimated depreciation rates for the assets:

Asset Yenrs

Buildings and consiructions 7.7 =50

Electrical tools & equipment 4—10

Motor vehicles =10

Furniture & fixture 4—10
Impairment

The carrving values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment in the case of evenis or
changes in circumstances indicabing that the carmving value may not be recoverable. When such an
indication exists, and when the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell or its value in use.

A cash-generating unit for which impairment is measured is identified as the smallest identifiable group
of azsets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets ar
groups of aszels. The carrying amount of an asset 15 written down direcily to its recoverable amount if
the assel’s carrying amount i& greater than its estimated récoverable amount.
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. SlUM IGN

Projects in progress

Assets under construction or development are capitalized under capital projects in progress. Assets under
construction or development are transferred to the appropriste category of property, equipment or
intangible assets (depending on the nature of the project), when the asset reaches the location and'or
condition necessary for it to operate in the manner deemed by management, The cost of the capital work-
in-progress item includes the purchase price, construction/development cost, and any other costs directly
associated with creating or acquiring the capital work-in-progress item that management considers. Costs
associated with testing items of capital work-in-progress (before they are available for use) are capitalized
net of proceeds from selling any production during the testing period. Capital projects in progress is nol
depreciated or amortized,

Repair and maintenance expenses aré charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Repair
and maintenance expenses that significantly increase the value of the assets or extend their useful life are
capitalized.

The depreciation method, residual value estimates and useful lives are reviewed annually.

Any item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of an asset (calculated as the difTerence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) i3 included in the consolidated statement of profit end foss when the asset is
derecognized. The carrving amount of the asset is written down rmmediately to its recoverable amount
if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount

3-8 Investment properties

Investment properiies are properties held io earn rentals or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction), Investment properties are stated o1 cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss. The cost less estimated residual value, if any is depreciated using straight-
line basis over the wseful lives of the property. The cost includes the cost of replacing major parts and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Although the Group measures investment properties using the cost model, the fair value of investment
properties is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Fair value is determined based on an annual
evaluation performed by an independent valuer who holds recognized and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being
vilued,

Investment properiies are derecogmized either when they have been disposed off or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use or when no fulure econdmic benefit is expecied from their disposal,
Gaing or losges resulting from disposal of investment properties are recognized in the consolidated
staternent of profit or loss,

Properiies an2 depreciated wsing the strail-line basis over their estimated useful life of 50 years and
depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

REental income of these investment properties and their related depreciation are ineluded in statement of
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the investment property is derecognized on its disposal (either through sale or a
finance lease) or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The difference between (a) net proceeds from disposal
of investment property and (h) its carrving amount, is recognized in the profit or loss in the period of
disposal or write-off.

If the use of investmenl property changed to a property occupied by the Group, it will be reclassified to
property and equipment ifem at the same carrying value at the date of reclassification, If the use of a
property occupied by the Group thet was classified under property and equipment, it will be reclassified
to investment properties fiem at the same carrying value at the date of reclassification. The residual value
of the investment property and its useful life are reviewed at the end of each financial year and the
necessary adjustments are made as a result of o change inan sccounting estimate,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3-9 Intangible assets

Acquired assets are measured Individually at cost on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
intangible assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. Intemally
generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are nol capitalized and are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expensed are incurred,

3-10 Com puter software
Software licenses purchased from other parties are initially recorded at cost. These are amortized using
the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of four years.

3-11 Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount that results when the fair value of consideration transferred for an acquired
business exceeds the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilites
recognized. When the Group enters into a business combination, the acquisition method of accounting is
used. Goodwill is allocated, as of the date of the business combination, o cash generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination. Each cash generating unit represents the lowest level

at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and it is never larger than an operating
seEmenl

3-11 Impairment testing on goodvrill

The Group®s management performs annual impairment test of goodwill for the purpose of impairment
testing and to identify whether the carrving value of goodwill is less than its recoverable value. The
recoverable value is determined based on information used in the expected work plans for the five years
following the financial statements and their related cash flows. Impairment testing is performed based on
the measurement of current value of the future cash flows for five vears in accordance with reasonable
and objective assumptions 1o estimate cash flow depending on recent variable budgets approved by the

3-13 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the asset may be impaired
If any indication exists, or when anmual impairment testing for an assel is required, the Group estimates
the asset's recoverable amount, The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of an asset's or cash-
generaling unit's fair value less costs of disposal and its usable value.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset is determined unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those of other assets or a group of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considercd
bmpaired and written down to its recoversble amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Nows are discounted to their present value using a
pre=-tax discount rale that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the rizks
specific to the asset. Recent market transactions are taken into account in determining fair value less
costs of disposal, In the event that such transactions cannot be determined, the appropriate valuation form
is wsed, Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and no impaisment losses 1o goodwill are reversed.

The Group bases its calculation of impairment on detailed budpets and operating plans, which are
prepared separately for each of the cash-generating units of the group to which the individual assets are
distributed. These operating budgets and plans gencrally cover a period of five vears. The long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to the project’s future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses from continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in categories of expenses consistent with the function of the impaired asset,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication that previously récognized impairment losses no bonger exist or have decreased, When
such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
Impairment losses are reversed so that the carmying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount and does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in previous years. This response is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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3-14 Zakat

The Group is subject to zakat in accordance with the regulations of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“the Authority™). Zakat is stcrued and charged 1o the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the current perod. Additional zakat liabilines, if any, related o assessments
made on previous years are calculated by the Authority in the period in which the final assessments are
issued.

The group is primarily eligible to pay zakat anly. Since the reversal of the timing differences, if any, is
not expected to have any matertal impact on the amount of zakat in the foreseeable future, and therefore
no deferred tax liability or asset is recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

3-15 Employees” post employment henefits
3-15-1 Short-term obligations

Linbilities relating to wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, accrued leave and travel
tickets that are expected to be paid in full within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related services, are recognized based on the services provided by the employess
up to the end of the reporting period. It is measured by the amounts xpected 1o be paid when the labilities
are seftled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit liabilities under accrued expenses in
the consolidated statement of financial position,

3-15-2 Other obligation related to long term emplovees' benefits

The liability or asset is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the
defined reward. The employees' end of service benefit obligation is the present value of the defined

benefit obligation in the reporting year. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method,

The present value of the obligation determines the defined benefits by discounting the estimated futures
cash outflows using interest rates of high-guality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the rewards will be paid, and whose terms are similar to those of the relaied obligation.

The defined benefit costs are classified as follows:

Service cost

Service costs include current service cosl and past service cosl, which are recognized immediately in the
cansclidated statement of profit or loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation on plan modifications or reductions are
recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as past service costs,

n 5l

The met interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate 1o the net defined benefit obligation
balance. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or koss

Remeasurement gain or loss

Remeasurement gains or losses arising from adjustments or changes in actuarial assum ptions in the year
in which they occur are recognized directly in other comprehensive income,
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3-16 Revenue recognition

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenug comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from providing services in the

ordinary course of the Group’s

business taking info consideration contractually determined payment femms.

Revenue is stated net of trade discounts, incentives and discounts.

The Group recognizes revenue

when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable

that future economic benefits will Mow fo the Group; and when specific crileria have been met for each of

the Group's activities, as descri

bed below.

The Group recognizes revenue under IFRS 15 using the following five steps model:

Step 1 Tdentify the contract

A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that

performance obligations
Step 3: Determine the
transaction price,

with the customer creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every
contract that must be met.
Step 2: ldentify the A performance obligation 15 a promise n a contract with a customer 1o

transfer a pood or service to the customer.
The transaction price is the amount of consideration 1o which the Group

expects 0 be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services 1o a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third

parties,

Step 4: Allocate the
transaction price

For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount
that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for satisfving each performance obligation, |

Step 5: Revenue recognition

The Group recognizes revenue (or as) it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service to the customer under a

comract,

3-17 Education services

Revenue is recognirzed when education services 1o students registered with schools are performed for each
school year and is stated at net less discounts and exemptions,

Other income is realized when the related service is provided,

3-18 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

Profit / (loss) atributable to the

shareholders of the Group, after deducting any equity service costs other

than ordinary shares, on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial

period.

Diluted earmings per share {losses)

The numbsers wsed (o determine
taking into account:

the basic earnings/{losses) are adjusted to the diluted earnings per share,

The effect of interest after income tax and other financing costs associated with the reduction of potential

common stock

The weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all ordinary shares with the effect of the potemial dilution.

1%
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MMAR F SIGNIFIC L8 LICT E

3-19 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forelgn currencies are converied into Sawdi Riyals using the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of these
transactions and from the re-measurement of monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the vear are recognized in the consolidated sistement of profit and
lnas.

Non-monetary items a1 the end of the vear are not retranslated and are measured at historical cost
(translated wsing the exchange rates ab the date of the wransaction), excepl for non-monetary items
measured af fair value that are translated using the exchange rates af the date when the fair value was
determined

3-10 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount thereof can be made, Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1 the liability. Unwind of discount is
recognized as finance cost in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

3-11 Contingent Liabilities

All contingent liabilities arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the
oCcurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events that are not entirely within the
Group's control, or all present liabilities ansing from past events but are unrecognized for the following
reasons: (i) there is no possibility that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
ohligation,

or (i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability; All of them must be
evaluated af the date of each conzolidated statement of financial position and disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements of the group within the contingent liabilities.

3-12 Segmeni reporting

Operating segment

The operating segment is one of the components of the group, which carries out activities from which it
may generate revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses related lo transactions with
any of the other segmenis of the group. All segment results are periodically evaluated by the operating
decision maker o make decisions and assess ihe performance of the resources allocated to cach segment
and the financial information available separaiely.

Segment results that are reporied to the operating decision maker include items directly anribuiable to
the segment as well as those that can be allocated on an appropriate basis. Head office expenses, research
and development costs, related assets/liabilities, and zakat assets and liabilities,

The Group has four operating sectors, in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (privaie schools - international
sehools - Indian schools - French schools). Each segment has reached the quantitative limits referred to
in IFES & Segment Reporting Standard, Accordingly, repods on operating segments have been disclosed
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Geographical segment

A geographical segment is a group of assets, operations or entities engaged in profitable activities ina
particular economic environment that are subject 1o risks and returns different from those operating in
other economic environments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3-23 Financial instrumenis

17 Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial labilitics

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost, or at fair value through
comprehensive income — debt investment, or at fair value through other comprehensive income — exquity
investment, or al fair value through profit or loss,

A financial asset is measured ar amonized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at F¥TPL.

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets 1o collect contractzal cash flows;
and

«  fts contractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outsianding.

A debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets both of the
following conditions and (s not designated as at FVTPL:

= it i3 held within & business model whose objective 15 achieved by both collecting contractual cash
Aows and selling financial assets; and
its confractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal ameunt outstanding.

O initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may imevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not designated as measured at amortized cost or at fair valee through comprehensive
income a5 described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all deAvative financial assets. On
initial recognition, the Growp may imevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements 1o be measured at amortized cost or fair value through comprehensive income or as assets
at FVTPL, if doing so0, eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismaich that would otherwise
arise,

A fimancial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initiadly
meisured at the transaction price) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.
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313 Finuncial instraments {continmed)
1} Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial Hahilities {continwed)

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets.

Financial assets ai FYTFL

These assets are subsequenily measured at fair value, Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial assel at amortized
cosg

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Amortized cost is reduced by impairmert
losses, [nferest income, foreipn exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognized in profit or loss,

Diebt investments at FYOCI

These assets are subseguently measured af fair value. Interest
imcome calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange pains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss,

Equity invesimenis al FYTCI

These assets are subsequently measursd a1 fair value, Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other
gains and lozses are recognized in the comprehensive income amd
are never reclazzified v profit or loss,

Derecognition
Financial assets

A financial asset {or part of a group of similar financial assets) is mainly derecognized (i.e. excluded from
the Group's statement of financial position) in the following cases:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been expired.
= The Group has transferred its rfights fo receive cash flows from the asset, or assumed an obligation to
pay cash flows received in full withowt delay 1o a third party under a "pass" arrangement; {a)
substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) transferred control over the asset
and the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially the rsks and rewands of the fimancial

assel.

Financial liabilitics

The Group derecognize a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expired. The Group also derecognize financial liabilities when the terms and cash flows of the modified
ohligation are substantially modified, in which case a new financial liability is recognized based on the

modified terms at fair value,

On dispesal of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
amortized and the amount paid (including any mon-cash assets transferred or lisbilities assumed) is

recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3-13 Financial instruments {contimued)

2} Impairment of laancial nssei

The financial assets recognized a1 emortized cost consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
Loss provisions are measured on the bases of ECLs over lifetime of a financial instrument: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount egual to lifetime ECLSs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since inftial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that
is refevamt and available without undue cost or effon,

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (ie. the difference between cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest
rate of the financial asser,

Credit-impaired financial asseis

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt
securities a1 fair value through other comprehensive income are credit-impaired, A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Presentation of impairment

Loss allowances for financial assets measured ai amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assefs.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of Income that could generate sulficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written-off could be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Ofsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reporied net in the statement of financial position when there
is & legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and when the Group intends to settle ana
met hasis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3-14 Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets on the commencement date of the lease (fe the date that the
underlying asset becomes available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recagnized, initial direct
costs incurred and lease payments made on or before the lease commencement, less any lease incentives
received and asset recovery costs. Unless the Group is reasonably certain about obtaining ownership of
the asset

Lessee At the end of the lease term, the recognized right-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-line
hasis over their estimated useful life or the lease term, whichever is shorter. Right-of-use assets are
subject to impairment

23



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2021

(Expressed in Saudi Rivals unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUE[Y)

3-15 Leases liabilities

The Group, at inception of the lease, recognizes lease liabilities that are measured at the present value of
the lease payments made over the term of the lease. Lease payments include fixed payments (including
actual fixed payments) less any lease incentives recelvable, index or rate variable rent pavments, and
amounts expected o be repaid under residual value guaranices. Lease payments also include the exercise
price of the purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the group and payment of lease
termination penalties if the lease reflects the group's exerciza of the option to terminate. Variable rent
payments that do not depend on a specific index or rate are recognized a3 an expense in the year in which
the event or circumstance causes the payment 1o be made.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the default borrowing rate at the
commencement of the lease if the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined, After
the lease commencement date, the amount of the lease commitments is added to reflect the increased
interest and reduced by the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of the lease liability
is remeasured if there is a modification or change in the lease term; Whether it is a change in the actual
fixed lease payments or a change in the valuation of the purchase of the underlying asset.

3-16 Short-term leases and leases of impairment assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 10 its shori-term leases of leasehold
properties (ie leases with a term of 12 months or less from the commencement date that do not include a
purchase option), and the recognition exemption for leases with low value assets, Lease payments relating
1o shor-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized s an expense on the siraight-line
method over the term of the |ease,

3-17 Borrowings

The borrowings are initially recognized at fair valee (as proceeds received) net of transaction costs, if
any. Subsequent to initial recognhition, long-ferm bomowings are measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the term of the
bormrowing using the effective interest rate method . Fees paid on borrowing facilities are recognized in
transaction costs of the borrowing to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be

withdrawn. In this casa, the fees are deferred until the facility is withdrawn, and the fees are capitalized
within the advance payments for liguidity services to the extent that there is no evidence that part or all
of the facility may be withdrawn, and are amorized over the period of the related facility.

Loans are derecognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation is
discharged, canceled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been amortized or transferved to a third party and the consideration paid, including non-monetary
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss in
other income of finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer

settlement of the hability for at least 12 months after the reporting year.

General and specific borrowings directly related to the purchase, construction or production of assets

eligible for capitalization are capitalized over the period of time required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale, as appropriate. Qualifiing assets are assets that necessarily take a
significant pericd of time to become ready for use or sale for which they are intended, Investment income
enrned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifving assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the vear in which thev are incurred in the
conselidated statement of profit or loss
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3-28 Cash dividends and non-cash dividends to shareholders

Cash or non-cash distributions to sharcholders are recognized as liabilities when the distribution is
approved, and according 1o the Companies Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, dividends are approved
when approved by the sharcholders. The amount disiributed s deducted directly from equity and
recognized as a liability

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4-1 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ replaces the following standard and interpretations:

- IAS 17 *Leases’.

= IFRIC 4 *Determining whether an Arrangement contains a lease’,

= BIC 15 "Operating leases - incentives”.

= 8IC 27 *Evaluating the substance of fransactions involving the legal form of a lease”.

The standard determines the principles of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognize leases in accordance with a consolidated accounting framewaork in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

At inception of & contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract is, or
contains, a lease, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel for a period of
fime in exchange for specific consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset.

As a lessee

Al the commencement date, the Group shall assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract
i5, of containsg, a lease if the contract conveys the nght to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for a consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identificd asset for a period of time, the Group shall assess whether, throughout the period of use,
the customer has both of the following:

{a) The right 1o obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset; and

(b1 The Aght 1o direct the use of the identified asset.

The Group shall recognize a right-of-use asset af the commencement date (i.e. the date on which the
underling asset is available for use) and a lease liability at the commencement date, The right-of-use asset
is initially measured @t cost less accumulpted depreciation and impairment and is settled for any
remeasurement of a lease liability.

The cost of right-0f-use assel includes the initial amount of a lease liability adjusted by lease payments
made on or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, less any lease incentives received, The estimated useful life for right-of-use asset based on the lease
ferm.

Al the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present valve of the lease
payments that are not pald at that date, The Group shall discount lease payments using the interest rate

implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be easily determined. the
Cirpup should use the incremental borrowing rate,

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by:

(&) increasing the carrying amouni to reflect interest raie on the lease lability;

i b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(¢] remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments that are remeasured when there is & change in future lease
payments arising from a change in index or & rate, or if there was a change in the Group's estimate of the
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JES IN ACCOUNTING PO 1 NTINLED

4-1 IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As 2 lessee (continued)

amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, or if the Group changed its
assessment whether if it will choose the purchase, extension or termination.

Any remeasurement is seftled in the lease liability against the carrving amount of right-of-use asset or
v::hm'g:d to the consolidated statement of income if the carrying emount of the related asset is Zero.

Short-term leases

The Group elected not 1o recognize right-of-use assets and lease labilities for the shori-term leases for
which their terms are 12 months or less. The Group recognizes lease payments associated with those
leases as expenses on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Extension options

In case of leases that provide extension opfiens, the Group assesses whether if it is reasonably certain, ot
commencement date, that the extension eptions will be exercised. The Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the options if there was an significant event or major change in the
circumstances that fall under its control,

Az legsor
When the Group is a lessor, it determines, at the commencement of the lease, whether the lease is a finance
lease or operating lease,

To classify each lease, the Group perform overall assessment whether lease transfers all substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership of an underlying asset If this is the case, then the fease is a
finance lease; if not, then it is an operating leass. As part of this assessment, the Group considers specific
indicators such as whether the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the underlying asset.
The initial measurement in case of finance leases: the lessor shall use the interest rate implicit in the |ease
10 measure the net investment in the lease.

Al the commencement date, the lease pavments included in the measurement of the net investment in the
lease comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not received at the commencement date:

() fixed payments;

(b} variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

(c) any residual value guarantees provided to the lessor by the lesses, a party related 1o the lessee or a
third party unrelated to the lessor that s financially capable of discharpging the obligations under 1he
puaraniee; and

(c) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

Upon subseguent measurement, & lessor shall recognize finance income over the lease ferm, based on a
pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease,

The initial measurement in case of operating leases: A lessor shall recogmize lease payments from
operating leases as income on elther a straight-line basis or another systematic basis. The lessor shall
apply ancther systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the
use of the underlying assel is diminished.

Upon subsequent measurement, a lessor shall apply IAS 36 to determine whether an underlying asset
subject to lease is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it calculates its interest in the head lease and sublepse
separately. Classification of the sublease is assessed by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset.

[T the head lease is a short-term lease, the Group applies exemption, the sublease shall be classified as an
operating lease.



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2011

(Expressed in Saudi Fivals unless otherwise stated)

HANGES IN A I

4-1 IFRS 16 *Lenses™ (continued)
Ax a lessor {eontinued )

If the arrangement includes lease and non-lease components, the Group shall allocate the consideration
in the contract by applying IFRS 15 for allocation the consideration in the contract,

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating leases as revenue on a straight-line basis
over the lease term as part of “other income",

The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period are not different
from IFRS 16. However, when the Group is an intermediase lessor, subleases are classified by reference
to the underling asset.

The Group adopted the application of IFRS 16 retrospectively with recognizing the accumulated effect
for the initial application of the standard on 1 August 2019, Under this method, for leases that had been
classified as operating leases, a lease lishility is measured a1 presemt value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
resulting right-of-use asset is measured af the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset that represents the
camying amount of the lease liability at the date of initial application. A lease liability is settled adjusted
by an amount of any prepaid or sccrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the statement
of financial position directly before the date of initial application. Any lease accruals or incentives relating
lo 4 previous operating lease against the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application. In addition,
the Group alse used practical expedients 1o apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics and excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application,

Previously, the Group had classified leases as operating leases or finance |eases based on its assessment
whether the lease substantively transfer all risk and rewards associated with ownership of the original
assel 1o Group. The Group classified all leases as operating leases for the year ended 31 July 2019, As of
| August 2019, the Group recognized the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with requirements of IFRS 16

Impact on the consolidated financial statements

Om transition to [FRS 16, the Group recognized right-of-use assats and lease liabilities, with sentling the
prepaid rent and recognizing the difference in retained eamings. The impact of transition at | August
201% is summarized below:

Right-of-use assets presented in the financial statements 226,866, TR
Lease liability on right-of-use assets (244,518,926)
Prepaid rent {9,448,848)
Impact on retained earnings (27,100,990
Right-of-use-assets atl beginming of the vear 226,566, T84
Assets recognized during the year H1.810,646
Depreciation charge during the year (25 648,488)
Balance af the end of the yvear 259,028,942

Lease liabilities recognized in the statement of financial position as at
31 July 2020

Current 23,320,268
Mon-curmemt 257,890,737
Lease linbilitics on right-of-use assets 281,211,005
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED
4-1 IFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

for the yvear ended
Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss 31 July 2020
Depreciation on right-of-use assets {25,648, 488)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (11,364,021)

Lease liabilities adjustments
O the date of initial application, a discount rate of 4.10% to 4,53% was used, The below table represents

the lease reconciliation as at 1 August 201%;

Minimum lease payments as at 1 August 2019 244 518,926
Additions during the year 57,810,646
Interest charged during the year 11,364,021
Paid during the year (20,044,724)
Dise to lessor and have not paid until the end of the year (12,437.804)
Total lease labilities ns at 31 July 2020 281,211,005

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Use of estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
are rarely egqual the actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
listed bebow.

Emplovees’ post emplovment benelits linbilities

The present value of the retirement obligations depends on a number of factors which are determined
using actuarial valuations that use a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
cost (income) of retirement include the discount rate. Any change in these assumptions will affect the
carrving amount of the retirement obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each vear, which is the interest rate used
o defermine the present value of estintated future cash Nows that are expected 1o be required to settle its
post-emplovment obligations. In determining the appropeiate discount rate, the Group considers the
interest rates on government bonds

Saudi Arabia has a rating of at least *A” or above, as determined by an intemnationally recognired rating
agency, with the period of government bonds consistent with the estimated period of post-employment
benefit liabilities.

Other key assumptions for post-employment liabilities are based in part on current market conditions.

Impairmeni of goodwill

The impairment test on CGLs is carrled out by comparing the carrying amount of OGlUs and their
recoverable amount, The recoverable amount of a CGL is the higher of its fair value, less costs to sell
and it value in use. This complex valuation process used to determine fair value less costs 1o sell andor
value in use entails the use of methods such as the discounted cash flow method which uses assumptions
to estimate cash flows, The recoverable amount depends significantly on the discount rate used in the
discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash flows.
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5.4 Fair value estimation of Mnancial instruments

53

5.6

5.7

The Group uses the most observable market inputs when measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability. Fair values are classified in o fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
which are shown as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be
obtained at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly (such as prices) or indirectly {such as derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are nol based on obsérvable market data (unobservable
inputs)

Provision for impairment in account receivables

Management has estimated the recoverability of the accounts receivable faking into account the required
provisions. Management has estimated the provisions for recelvables based on past experience and the
current economic environment for recovering ouistanding long-term receivables. Estimating the amount
of the provision requires significant judgment and wse of estimates regarding the amount and timing of
estimated losses based on past experience of losses, current conflicts, and consideration of current
economic trends and conditions, all of which may be subject to significant change. The provision i3
charged to operations based on management's periodic assessment of the aforementioned factors, as
well as other relevant factors. To the exient that actual results differ from management's estimates, a
provision may be made for impairment of trade receivables or reversal of excess provision that could
adversely or positively affect earnings or financial position in future periods

Useful lives of property and equipment
Depreciation of property and equipment is caleulated on a straight line basis according to the rates
mentioned in Mote No. (3) of these financial statements,

Provigion for zakat

The management has assessed the siatus of zakat and income fax, taking into &ccount the local zakat
and income tax legislation, periodically issued resolutions and agreemenis. The interpretation of such
legislation, decisions and agreements, which will not be completely clear, necessitates the completion
of the assessment by the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority
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Asat 3] July 2021, certain lands and buildings amountiag to SR TT,E12257 (2020: 5B 94,463, 130 ) are secured
against certain credit facilities as indicated in Mote {17),

Property and equipment inclide buildings and constructions built on land lensed from both ALBR Charity in
Riyadh and the Charity Center for Teaching Holy Quran and its Sciences. These lands represent 60% of the land
of Al-Howad Schools in Izdihar complex. The net book value of these buildings amounted 1o SR 35,491 505,
The bease agreement with ALBR Charity stipalates that the Society is entithed to 30% of any buildings or
exponsicns that the Group makes on the leased land, Accordingly, the total value of the sdditions and
improvements made to the buildings af a total cost of 5K 48 999,558, including ALBR Charity’s share of 5R
10,695 367 has been included as the Group has incurred these costs and it has the right to use them under the
contract,

The rental valwes payable o ALBR Charity is SR 2.5 million and the Charity Cenier for Teaching Holy Quran
and its Scienees s SR 3.8 million.

Thee leases with the Charity Center for Teaching Quran and its Sciences ends on 30712/ 145 1H. These buildings
are depreciated over their expected wseful lives of 50 vears, which exceeds the term of the leases, In view of the
information and other deta available to it, management belicves that it is able 1o renew the leases in acoordance
with the conditions and requirements of astivity,

Asat 31 July 2021, projects in progress of SR 8,537,174 (2020: SR 5,108 082) represent kn consiruction paoject
of an educational complex located in the Al-lzdihar districs as well as building development work.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Lamds* Buildings Tatal Total
LCost
Balance beginning of the vear 22,380,500 16616375 38,996,875 3B.995,875
Balance end of the year 22 380,500 16,616,375 38,996,875 38,996,875
Accumulated depreciation
Balance beginning of the vear - 1,244,826 1,244,826 912,499
Charged for the year (note 25) - 332317 332317 332127
Balanee end of the year - 1,577,153 1,577,183 1,244,826
Net book value; e
As at 31 July 2021 12,380,500 15,039,222 37419722
As at 31 July 2020 22,380,500 15371, 549 37,752,049
Estimated useful life of the investment property is as follows:
42 Years
Building &0

* These lands and buildings are secured against obtaining cemain credit facilities as described in Note
(17-2).
Measurement data of fair valee according 1o IFES 13 as at 31 July 2021 is as follows:
Kevinputand — Fair value

Valuation evaluation agat 3l
Properties H Eurpose assumplions duly 2021
P : e g BppTO
ﬁdmnlm“: buikiing for buildings, To know the market Recent
on Uthman kin Affan : 38,415,000
Boad market value value transactions
for lamds

Valuation techniques used are categorized as level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

The valuation mechanism of properties adogted in valuation of investment properties are consistent
with the international board for valuation standards as well as guidance of the Saudi Authority for
Accredited Valuers (TAQEEM).

The name and qualifications of the valuer who conducied the evaluation of the invesiment properties
are as follows:

Name of valuer Assets Price Real Estate Appraisal

Valuer's qualifications Licensed (TAQEEM).
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Computer

Goodwill * sofitware Taotal Total
Cost
Balance beginning of the year 376,399,168 1,570,880 377,970,049 376,399 169
Additions during the vear 458,200,201 - 48,300,201 -
Transferred from property
and equipment - - - 1,570,880
Disposal - (130,000) (130,000) -
Balance end of the year 424,699,370 1,440,880 426,140,250 377,970,049
Accumulated amortization
Balance beginning of the year - 392.TID 31710 -
Charged for the year (note
25) - 373,755 373,755 L0
Disposals . {46,036) {46,036) .
Balance end of the year - T10.439 720,439 392,720
Net book value:
As at 31 July 2021 424,699,370 720,441 425,419,811
Asat 31 July 2020 376,309,169 1,178,160 377,577,329

*Cioodwill represents the diffrence between the net assets transferred 1o the Group from the merging

and acquired companies and the value of those companies at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill has been allocated (o cash-generating units of the Group as follows:

Al-Rowad Schools, Al-Rawebi branch
Al-Rowad Schools, Al Mansoura branch
Al-Rowad Schools, [shhilia branch
Mokhbah Schools, Al Kharj branch
Al-Rowad Schools, Al Rawda branch

Al Fikr Private School
Middle East International School

Al Sulaymanivah International Private School
Mew Middle East International School
Modern Middle East International School

Al Oruba International Company for Education Services
Elm International Schools Company

Wasat Mational Training and Education Company

Impairment assesment on goodwill:

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
18,413,273 28,413.273
2,519,151 2.519,151
7,479,000 7,479,000
8,846,495 B BdG, 495
33,091,250 33,091,250
14,100,000 14, 100,000
66,600,000 6, 60,000
14,000,000 14,000,000
53,375,000 53,375,000
6,575,000 60,575,000
87,400,000 BT AQ,000
39716376 -
8,583 825 -
424699370 376,399, 160

The Group's management performs annual impairment test of goodwill for the purpose of impairment
assesment and to identi fy whether the carrying value of goodwill is less than its recoverable value. The
recoverable value is determined based on information used in the expected work plans for the five vears
following the financial statements and their related cash flows, [mpairment assesment (& performed
based on the measurement of curnent value of the fiture cash flows for five years in accordance with
reasonable and objective assumptions fo estimate cash flow depending on recent variable budgets

approved by the management.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set oul below:

The values assigned to key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the
relevant industries and have been based on historical data from both external and intemal sources.

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
from fo from L
Discount rane 12.68% 13.28% 12.7% 15.4%
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Girowth rate 5% 2%

The cash Mow projections included specific estimates for five vears and a terminal growth raie thereafier,
Terminal growth rate has been determined based onm the management's estimate of the long-term
compounded annual growth rate for profit before interest and depreciation, consistent with the assumptions

that the market participant may make.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that there i3 no reasonable probable change in any key assumptions that may lead

to a significant change in poodwill over its recoverable value.

9. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Right-of-use assets at the beginning of the year
Right-of-use assets transferred from acquired companies
Assets recognized during the vear

Balance af the end of the year

Balance a1 the beginning of the vear

Accumulated depreciation transferred from acquired companies
Charged during the year (note 24)

Balance end of the year

Net book value as at 31 July 2021
Met book value as at 31 July 2020

Lease liabiliti ight-of- I

Lease liabilities az ai the beginning of the year

Lease liabilities transferred from scquired companies
Additions during the vear

Interest charged during the vear (note 27)

Paid during the year

Concessions on leases (note 26)

Dvee to lessor and did not pay until the end of the vear®

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
284677430 226,866, TE4
1,651,285 5
198,999 57,810,646
351,527,714 284,677,430
25,648,488 -
503,683 -
30,019,741 25,648, 488
56,171,912 25,648 488
295,355,802
259,028,942
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
281,211,005 244,518 926
1,198,386 -
65,198,999 57,810,646
12,535,301 11,364,021
{35,816,107) (20,044,724)
(1,917,479} -
. {12,437.864)
322,410,105 281,211,005

The receivables io lessors have been classified and not paid as of July 31, 2020 as follows:

(5,539,864 Saudi rivals in an scoount due 1o & related panty for the sccount of Dr. Akmed bin Nasser Elmet’eh,
5,498,000 Sauch rivals in accounts payable to Cruba Educational Complex Lessor),
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED}

Lease liabilities on right-of-use assets included in the consolidated statement of financial position are

a5 follows:

Mon-current
Current
Lease liabilities on right-of-use assets

Less than one year
[-5 years

More than 5 years

10. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

Account receivables
Less: impairment provision in account receivables

10-1 Movenent of impairment provision in account receivables as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance transferred from acquired companies
Charged during the year

Used during the year

Provision reverse

Balance at the end of the year

Mate 30-2 shows detalls of credit risk for sccount receivables

11, FREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advance to suppliers and contractors
Prepaid government fees
Prepaid medical insurance
YAT

Management building cliems
Prepaid finance cost
Professional fees
Emplovee’s receivables
Prepaid housing al lowance
Accrued government grants
Letters of guarantees

Oiher

14

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
300,630,208 247,890,737
21,779,897 23,320,268
322,410,105 281,211,005
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
211,987,767 23,320,268
112,831,298 113,610,103
187,591,040 144,280,634
312 410,105 281,211,005
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
64,819,651 £1,281,451
(7.494,095) (4,356,815)
57,315,556 76,924,636
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
4,356,815 1,959,308
2,444,143 -
783,699 9,010,960
{526) (6,613,453)
(90,036) -
7,494,095 4,356,815
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
6, TH1, 280 1239347
2,045,988 4,206,216
1,088,762 -
1,399,254 -
L,T7r9.220 1,986,309
1,735,656 512,916
1,643,625 2
1,101,752 1,800,165
1,079,098 1,241,28]
B3R,045 1,001,299
- 200,000
2,350,320 2,248 896
15.842.979 14,526,429
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The transactions with related parties represent the value of renting educational complexes, contracting
services, training services, supervision, salaries, bonuses, compensation and allowances for board
members, senior executives and senior management that took place between the group and related
parties, and between the group, members of the beard of directors, senior executives and senior
management. The normal course of the group’s activity and according to the same principies nf:teal'[ng
with others, The most important transactions with related panties and the balances resulting from them

are a3 follows:
Nature of Nature of Transaction's volume
relationship Iransactions 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Dir. Ahmed bin Shareholder and
|
M Elmet’ch BOD member Rent 13,188,000 13,188,000
Mtwroon Training and
Company = Related pariy supervision 284,968 =
Leaders Center SETVICES
AlOmran Contractors’
AlMutagadima ey services 91,025 3
12-1 Due from related party
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
AlOmran AlMutsgadima B 375 -
8,375 -
12-1 Due to related party
A1 July 2021 31 July 2020
Mtwroon Company — Leaders Center 148,961 =
Dr. Akmed bin Masser Elmet"eb - 9,139,862
148,961 0,139,862

12-3 Benefits, remunerations and compensation of senior management and senior executives
For the year ended 31 July 2021

For the vear ended 31 July 2020

BOD and BOD and Senior
Ccommittess” managament committees’ MEnaEment
miembers personal members personal
Benefits and
e 2,443,000 - 2,434 00 =
Salaries,
remunerations
and end of
SErvice . 2,876,084 - 3. 176,931
2,443,000 2,876,084 2,434,000 3,076,931
13.  CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Cash at banks T7A57,756 2.321.260
Cach on hand 41,077 73123
7,498 833 2304 383
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14. SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 July 2021, the Group's authorized and paid-up capital of SR 400 million (31 July 2020: SR 400
million) is divided into 40 million shares (31 July 2020: 40 million shares) of SR 10 each.

14-1 Share premium:

In accordance with the resolution of the Extraordinary General Assembly, which was held on 2 Dhul-
Hijjah 1436 H comesponding to 15 September 2015 the Company capital increase was approved amounting
to 5R 744 million by issuing new shares amounting to 7.4 million shares with a nominal value of 10 rival
per share and share premium of 28.17 SR per share, provided that the increase is developed in favour of
the pariners in JARIR National Schools Complex Company for Boys and Girls,

15. STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Group's By-laws and Saudi Arabian Regulations for Companies, 10% of the annual
net income is transferred to the statutory reserve until such reserve equals 30% of share capital. The
statutory reserve is not available for distribution; however, it can be used 1o increse the share capital afier
approval of the shareholder,

16. DIVIDENDS
On Jumada Al-Awwal 27, 1442 H corresponding to January 11, 2021, the Ordinary General Assembly
decided to distribute dividends in the amount of 40,000,000 Saudi riyals at the value of one Sawdi rival
per share (luly 31, 2020: 40,000,000 Saudi riyals at the value of one Saudi rival per share)

7. BORROWINGS

Borrowings represent the following:

17-1 A borrowing from Ministry of Finance

Om 5 Muharram 1436H (corresponding to 29 October 2014), the Group obtained a long-term borrowing
from the Ministry of Finance with a total amount of SR 19.03 million 1o finance contracting and
construction works needed to build an educational complex in Al-Mansoura District. This facility is
repaid in ten annual installments afier the grace period which is estimated as four vears from the signing
date of the agreement. The last installment of the bormowing 15 pavable on 10 June 2028, This borrowing
does not bear any financing interest.

Collaterals

These facilities are secured by morigage of the land of staff accommodation villa located in Al Rawabi
District of SR 1,272,745 (31 July 2020; SR 1,273.618) and the land located in Al Salam District of SR
20,099,200 (31 July 2020:5R 20,099,200}, Mote (6).

Movement in bomrowings obtained from the Ministry of Finance during the year is as follows;

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Balance at the beginning of the yvear 15,230,400 17,134,200
Paid during the vear (1,903, 8400 ) (1,903 800
Balance at the end of the year 13,326,600 15,230,400
Movement in the present value of borrowings obtained from the Ministry of Finance is as follows:
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Total borrowings at end of the vear 13,326,600 15,230,400
Less: defemed finance charges
Balance at the beginning of the year (2,412,593) (2,978,813)
Finance expenses for the yvear 512,712 566,220
Balane at the end of the year (1,899,581) (2,412,593)
Present value of borrowings at end of the vear 11,426,719 12817807
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17-2 Borrowings granted from local banks

The group has signed facilities agreements compatible with Shariah regulations with several local banks
in the form of Islamic Murabahas with a total amount of 893,000,000 Saudi rivals. The facilitics are
secured by land and real estate amounting to 56,440,312 Saudi dyvals (31 July 2020: 73,090,312 Saodi
riyals) and (6) promissory note amounting to 584,788,363 Saudi rivals. Agreements with banks contain
bank covenants and these covenanis &re monitored on @ monthly basis by the management, in the case of
a breach or potential breach of these covenants Actions are taken by management to ensure that these
covenants are fulfilled,

Movement in borrowings from local banks is as follows:

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 144,512,347 166,614,010
Finance obtained during the year 159,851 HED 106,928,543
Accrued finance expenses 1,212,682 1,721,948
Payment during the year {212,801,099) (130,752,154)
Total borrowings from local banks at the end of the vear 192,776,819 144,512,347

Detailz of borrowings were presented in the consolidated statermnent of financial position as follows:

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Mon-current portion of borrowings * 172575 968 41,426,355
Current portion of borrowings * 30,627,570 115,903,299
204,203,538 157,330,154
* Includes a borrowing from Ministry of Finance (MNate 17-1)
18. DEFERRED BEVENUE OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,412,593 2978813
Movement during the year (512,712) { 566, 220)
1,899,881 2,412,593
Current portion of deferred revenue of government granis 457,068 ] A
:::zumm portion of deferred revenue of government 1,442,813 | 899 58]
1,899,881 2412,593
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19. EMPLOYEES POST OF EMPLOYMENT

The system provides for post-employment benefits for all employees who complete the qualifying period
of service and are entitled to the amounts stated under the Labor Law for each vear/period of such service.
The annual provision is hased on an actuarial valuation. The assessment was performed as on July 31
and July 31, 2020 by the company’s management, using the projected credit unit method ,2021,

The actuarial assumptions that were relied upon in calculating emplovees® end of service benefits are as

follows:

19-1 Significant actuarial assumptions

Discount rate — non-Saudi

Discount rate — Saudi

Salary increase rate (% annwm)

Emplovess turnover rate (3 annum) - non-Saudi
Employees turnover rate (*& annum) = Saudi

19-2 Movement in current value of defined benefits obligation

Present value at the beginning of the vear

Present value transferred from acquired companies
Present service cost

Interest cost

Payment during the year
Actuarial losses

Liess than a year

1-5 years
More than 5 vears

H July 2021 31 July 2020
2.25% - 1.5% 2.R0%
1.1% - 1.22% 2.80%

0L.3% - 1% 0. 30%%
3% 3%
$0%% 0%
3 July 2021 31 July 2020
33,363,510 29,403,300
2,125,167 -
5,335,339 3,482,500
HE6.B26 B4E 200
6,222,165 4,331,400
(8,496,239) (6, 566,635)
5974 6,195 445
33,220,577 33,363,510
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
9000, 000 8,496,239
14,000,000 14,800,000
10,220,577 10,067,271
33,220,577 33,363,510

19-3 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted average of the key

assumplions is;

Working Change in assumption 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
: +0.5% 30,791,599 12,114,398
Phspgunt rake -0.5% 33,160,758 34,719,274
+0.5% 35187974 34,747,333

g sy 0.5% 30,757,231 32,078,385

The above sensitivity analyzes are based on the change in one of the assumptions while all other
assumptions are held constant. In practice, this is unlikely to happen, as some changes in some
assumpiions may be related fo each other, When calculating the sensifivity of emplovees’ end-of-service
benefits to 4 material actuarial assumption, the same method i3 applied (the preseni value of the
employees” defined benefit obligation calculated on the basis of the estimated unit credit cost method at
the end of the reporting period) when calculating employees” post-employment benefits recognized in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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BEVENUE RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

This balance represents the total wition fee revenus received in cash for the first semester 202172022,
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

31 July 2021 31 Juby 2020
Acerued dividends 10,003, 15,037 858
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,027,044 3,116,191
Payable to parents 1,923,148 -
Accrued rent 1,042,476 .
Amounts due 1o GOSI E15, 76T HER.501
Deferred rent revenue 681,777 1,037,447
Accrued professional fees 295 500 669 344
YAT - 1,115,745
Other 1,633,403 1,910,702
18,433,021 23,776,288

ZAKAT FROVISION

A- Takat Status

The group submited iis zakat returns 1o the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authoriry {“the Authority™) until
the vear ended on July 31, 2020 and oblained a cerfificate from the Auwthority valid until 25 Rabi® al-
Thani 1443 AH corresponding to November 30, 2021.

Ataa Educational Company (the "Parent Company™) has obtained the necessary regulatory approvals and
obiained the approval of the Authority to calculate Zakat in accordance with the consolidated financial
staternents, where the Zakal provision is calculmted on the basis of the consolidated Zakat base of the
parent company and its subsidianies wholly owned directly or indirectly, with the exception of Elm
International Schools Company and A| Wasat National Schools Company for Education and Training.
On Seplember 19, 2021, the company received from the Authority the revised zakat assessments for the
year 2020, which resulted in a mkat difference of 53,292 Saudi riyafs, with the company giving a grace
period to respond to the authority until September 26, 202 1. The company will not ohject and the amount
of zakat differences will be paid once the invoices are issued by the authority.

B- Zakat base
31 July 2021 31 July 2020

Zakat of companies included in the consolidated
declaration
Net income for the year before zakat for the companies for
which the consolidated declaration is submitted i L
Provisions 5,607,082 13,342,360
Charitable Endowment Exsmption Balance (18,563,134}
Net adjusted profit (A) 32,395,030 72,388,006
Audds:
Share capital and share premuim 609,594,000 RS, 594,000
Statutory reserve 31,142,500 23,562,892
Retained eamings 74,615,797 40,092,947
Accumulated provisions 29304 391 18,183,061
Other additions 449,179,067 414,851,596

1,226,241 085 1,178,672,502
Less:
Mon-current assets (1,242,118,634) (1,173,942 078)
Total {1,242,118,630) (1,173,942,078)
Zakal base (B) 15,877,545 4,730,424
Zakat due accordance with consolidated declaration B 8TE 1,809,700
Zakat of companies not included in the conselidated 261,586 -
declaration
Taotal zakat expense 1,071,762 1,800,700
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22. ZAKAT PROVISION (CONTINUED)

C- Zakat provision movement

40

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Balance at the beginning of the vear 1,810,241 1,673,699
Balance transferred from acquired companies 667,436 -
Charged for the vear 1,071,762 1,809,700
Faid during the vear (1,956, 760) (1,673,158}
Balance at the end of the year 1,592,679 1,810,241
23, REVENUE
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Tuition 280,002 431 325,841,098
Bus subscription revenue - 10,535,836
280,002 431 336,376,934
24. COST OF REVENUE
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Salaries and equivalents 133,552 877 149 765,724
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Mote 9) 30,019,741 25,548 488
Depreciation on property and equipment (Note 6) 16,087,971 16,271,705
Government fees 12.363.337 12490,121
Rent 4,772,488 1,226,758
Electricity and water 18212412 4,794 624
Repair and maintenance 2,118,524 2965472
Stationery and prints 1,376,837 2,481,202
Telephone, mail and intermet 549 650 420,443
Students" activity lees 244,616 1,350,761
Technical and computer support expenses 131,726 69218
Professional and consulting fees 121,816 95,083
Cleaning and hosting 107,402 744,950
Other 355,104 1,788,154
_ 204675501, _ 220,121,705
25. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Salaries and equivalents 15,675,565 14,118,548
Professional and consulting fees 1,985 468 1,779,971
Bank fees 1,750,382 1,764,113
Giovernment fees 1,319,250 Tdd, 769
Technical and computer support expenses 1,384,671 D61, 704
Amortization on intangible assets (Note 8) 3T3, 755 392,720
Depreciation on investment property {Note 7) 332327 332,317
Telephone, mail and internet 154,263 199,268
Cleaning and hosting 151,333 100,813
Rent 148,315 .
Stationery and prints 118,247 125,450
Repair and maintenance 27,583 25,220
Electricity and water 18,021 31,648
I pairment in inveniory - 198,940
Orther 1,454,907 721,790
24,903,087 21,495,277
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26. OTHER INCOME

3 July 2021 31 July 2020

Rental of the administrative building and halls 2,550,368 3,404,698
Concessions on leases {MNote %) 1,917,479 -
Government grants * 1,765,339 1,513,875
Revenue from the sale of books 375,000 -
Students activity revenue 178,040 703,358
Additional evening classes 166,228 971,351
Endorsement [ncome 59,120 =
Cafeteria rent - 1,922,678
Other 1,628,449 5,232,981
8,640,023 13,748,941

(5} Government grants are represented as follows:

31 July 2021 31 July 2020

Ministry of Education subsidies 1,080,427 028,255
Revenue from governmeni grants 512,712 566,220
Subsidies of Human Besources Development Fund grants 172,200 19,40
1.765,339 1,513,875

= The Ministry of Education subsidy is granted to the Group annually in accordance with the specific
regulations of the ministry, which is mainly related to the budget allocated by the Ministry and the
niember of students enrolled in each school,

The Human Rezourees Development Fund (the “Fund™) subsidy is granted in accordance with the
ggreement between the Group and the Fund on the basis of a lump sum of the monthly salary for a
certain period for Saudi employees covered by the agreement.

27. FINANCE COSTS
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Interest on right-of-use assets obligations (note %) 12,535,301 11,364,021
Finance costs - borrowings T, 725494 10,525,132
20,260,795 21,889,153

26. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing income for the year attributable to the Group’s
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as the Group has no diluted

instruments.
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Income for the vear 37,064,600 75,799,080
Weighted average number of shares 40,000,000 40,000,000
0,93 1,89
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29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Capital commitments - projects in progress 21,470,665 a
Suppliers 3843324 3,668,811
Uncovered letter of guarantee = 2,055,600
25,513,989 5,724,411

The following are the amounts pavable for lease contracts not recognized as right-of-use assets:
31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Less than one year 4,920,448 1,226,758
1-3 yvears 9840976 3,680,274
More than 3 years - "
14,761,424 4,907,032

There are no rents due for more than three years, given that the company plans thit all educational
buildings during the coming period will be either owned buildings or rented buildings sccording to long-
term lease contracts, and with regard to staff housing, cash housing allowances will be granted 1o
employees instead of providing housing for them on Company expense.

30. EINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's principal financial liabilities include borrowings, lease liabilities on right of use assets,
deferred government grant income, accounts payable, revenue received in advance, accrued expenses and
other current liabilities due to a related party, The Group's principal financial assets consist of accounts
receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assels, cash and cash equivalents, due from a related pary.
The main financial risks arising from the Growp's financial instruments are market risk (including interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. Management reviews and aligns policies
to manage those risks,

30-1 Market risk

It is the risk of fluctuation in a financial instrument due to changes in prices prevailing in the market.
such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, which affect the group’s income or the value of its
financial instruments. Market risk management aims (o manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while maximizing returns. There has been no change in the Group's exposure to
market risk or the way it is managed and how it is measured.

Jik-1-1 Interest rate risk

Enterest rate risk is the exposure 1o various risks associated with the effect of fuctuations in the prevailing
interest rates on the Group's financial position and cash flows, The Group is exposed 1o inberest rale risk
on s interest bearing assets and liabilities, which mainly consist of bank facilities and borrowings .
Management limits interest rate risk by monitoring changes in interest rates. Management monitors
changes in interest rates and believes thar the cash flow and interest rate risks to the fair value of the
Ciroup are not significant

Crroup receivables and payables carried at amortized cost are not subject 1o interest rate risk as defined
in IFRS 7 as the carrying amount or future cash Mows do not change due to changes in market imerest
rates. Accordingly, the Group 15 not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.
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30-1 Market risk (continued)

J0-1-1 Interest rate risk (continued )
The Group's exposure to risk of changes in interest rates are as follows:

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Variable interest rate borrowings 191,564,137 142,750,399
Fixed interest rate borrowings 11,426,719 12,817,807

All existing credit facility agreements are concluded with local banks and are compatible with the
provisions of Islamic Sharia,

Sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the sensitivity of income to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with
other variables held constant, there is no direct impact on the equity of the Group.

Statement of profit or loss
3 July 2021 31 July 2020
Increase 100 Heduce 100 Increase 100 Feduce 100
poinis poinis paints painis
Wariable interest rate
borrowings 1,927,768 (1,927,768) 1,427,903 (1,427,903)
Changes in cash flow 1,917,768 (1,927,768) 1,427,903 (1,427,903}

= There is no impact on statement of equity.
M-1-2 Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates, foreign currency risk arises when future commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the Saudi Riyal. In Saudi rivals. Managerment
monitors the risks of fluctuations in exchange rates closely and on an ongoing basis, and based on its

experience and market reactions, management does not believe that it is necessary to hedge against
foreign exchange risks as most of the foreign exchange risks are relatively limited in the medium term.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
30-2 Credit risk

It is the risk that one party will not be able to fulfill its obligations, causing financial losses to the other
party. The Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk. Cash and cash equivalents are
deposited with lecal banks with high credit ratings. Accounts receivable and other receivables are mainly
due from customers in the local market and are stated at their estimated collectible value. The Group has
policies in place to reduce its exposure to credit risk. The carrying amounts of the financial assets
represent the maximum credit risk,

The following is the credit rating of the banks that the company deals with and their balances as on July

31, 2021-
Credit rating 31 July 2021 31 July 2020
BAaAl 1,112,029 520,131
Al 2,465,570 792.411
A2 2,231,730 39,112
A3 1,647,427 949 606

TA57. 756 2,321,260

Agcount receivables

021 4 years

Total Current Year 2ycars 3 years and Provision
m 64,819,651 43,097256 11969033 5806090 2,576,187 1371085 (7,494,095)
ECL 7,494,095 1LBGLIBE 1275907 LBOGSIY 1352091 L,167390 7494095
ECL 11.6% A.3% 1L T% 3L.1% SL6% E5.1%
2020 4 years

Toial Cuirrenl Year 2 years Jvears  and more  Provision
Book

B128].45] 4 356,81

value 284 67247221 B re0.525 31311699 1,433 535 608,471 L )
ECL 4,356,815 = L34988 1310809 1,181,901 S19. 11T 4356815
ECL rate 5.4% = 15.4% 46% E2.4% B5.3%4

The Group has not provided for certain past due account receivables as it holds collaterals fo collect these
receivables. Also, the Group believes that it is able to collect receivables that exceeded one year because
it holds students” files and the students are unable to move to another school or leave school without
recourse 1o the Group and pay all the accruals to be able to obtain their education file and obtain a
clearance from the school.

30-3 Liguidity risk

It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in obaining the financing necessary to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from the inability to zell a
financial azset quickly &t & value close to its fair value, Liquidity risk is managed by regularly monitoring
the adequacy of liquidity available to meet the Group's financial obligations. The Group's approach to
managing liguidity is 1o ensure that it will have sufficient ligquidity 1o meet 1% liabilities when due, under
both normal and established conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the
Group's reputation.

The following {able summarizes the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the consolidated statement of financial position date to the contractual manurity
date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
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I FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

30-3 Liquidity risk (CONTINUED)
Carrying L= thamn 1 Maore than
31 July 2021 Valoe Year 1 to 5 years 5 years
Lease liabiliti i A
s m;m itics on right-of- 39, 410,108 21,779.897 113,039,168 187,591,040
Borrowings 204,203,538 31,627,570 168,103,737 4,472,231
Deferred government grants
S 1890 E81 457,068 1,369,550 73,113
Accounts payvable 961,243 061,243 “ =
Advance revenue 6,793,198 6,793,198 = &
Accrued expenses and other
payables 15,433,021 18,433,021 - -
Duse to a related party 148,961 148,961 * =
554,849,947 80,200,958 282,512,495 192,136,494
Carryving Less than | More than 5
31 July 2020 Vialue year | 1o § years years
Lense liabilities on right-of-
g 281,211,005 23,320,268 113,610,103 144,280,634
Borrowings 157.330,154 115,903 299 39,596,278 1,830,577
Deferred government grants
revenus 1.412,593 512,712 1,683,028 216,853
Accounis payable 5,050,022 5,050,022 . .
Advance revenue 5448 384 5.448 384 < .
Accrued expenses and other
payables 23,776,288 23,776,288 - -
Due to a related party 9,139,862 9,139,862 - :
484,368,308 183,150,835 154,889,409 146,328,064

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Group monitors its capital base using
the net debt to equity ratio. Net debt is caleulated as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

The following is the net debt to equity ratio of the Group at the end of the year:

31 July 2021 31 July 2020
Bommowings 204,203,538 157,330,154
Less:
Cash and cash equivalenis (T, 498.833) (2,354,383)
Met debe 196, 704,705 [54,935.771
Total equity atiributed to company shareholders 744,740,416 749,148,919
Net debt rate 1o equity 26.4% 20. 7%
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J0.F .

M-4 Fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an assel could be exchanged, or a liability setiled, in a transaction
between market parficipants al the measurement date. The fair value measurement §s based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability will take place either:

Through the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» By the most advantageous market for the asset or liability in the absence of the principal market.

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the group.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interests,

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset wkes into account the ability of the marker parties
o provide economic benefits by using the asset for the best benefit from it or by selling it to another
party in the market to use it for the best benefit from it

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate 10 the circumstances and conditions and have
sufficient data to measure fair value, maximize the use of relevant ohservable data, and minimize the use
of unobservable data.

All asseis and liabilities whose foir values are measured or whose fair values are disclosed in the

consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy set out below hased on

the lowest level inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

»  Firsi level: prices traded in active markets for the same assets or liabilities.

*  Level two: other valuation techniques in which the minimum amount of material data is directly or
indirectly observable to the fair value measurement.

*  Level Three: Crther valuation technigues in which minimal inputs that are material 1o the fair value
measurement are unobservable,

For azsets and labilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,

the Group determines whether transfers have taken place between levels in the above hierarchy by

remssessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. From preparation of the consclidated financial statements.
The carrying amount of a financial asset that cannot be measured &t fair value is the approximate value

of its fair value. The financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, which reazonably approximates
their fair value,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2021
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31. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of information on reportable segments to the Group's net income before Zakat:

31 July 2021 31 July 20320

Gross profit from reported segment 75,326,930 116,255 779

Unallocated amount:

Other income B,640,023 13,748,941

Impairment of accounts receivable (693,663) (9.010,960)

Creneral and adminisirative expenses (24,903,087) (21495277

Finance costs {20,260,795) (21,689,153}

Total unallocated amount (37,217,522} (38,646,449

Income before Zakat 38,109,408 77,608,780
32. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

31 July 2021 31 July 2020

Addition of Right-of-use assets against lease Habilities 65,198,999 284,677,430

Disposal of intangible asseis against payable 83,964 -

Actuarial losses from employee post employment benefit

remeasunement 2974 6,195 445

Transferred from property and equipment 1o intangible assets - 1,570,880

Unpaid dividends against accrued expenses and other current

liability - 74,191
33 ACOUIRING SUBSIDIARIES

The acquisition was calculated using the acquisition method under IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
{the “Standard™) with Ataa Educational Company being the acquiring party and Elm International
Schools Company and Wasat Mational Training and Education Company being the acquired .parties

As required by the standard, Aras Educational Company is in the process of allocating the purchase
consideration for idenfifiable assets and labilities up 1o the date of issuance of the consalidated
Financial statements, Accordingly, Ataa Educational Company has calculated the acquisition based on
the temporary fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities as on the date of acquisition, as
independent evaluations have not been completed. The adjustment to these provisional values will be
completed within iwelve months from the dafe of acquisition as permitied by the standard.,

The Company is in the process of making a comprehensive allocation of the purchase price, which is
expected (o be completed within twelve months from the date of acquisition and will focus, without
limitation, on the completion of valuation adjustments on the following:

= recognition of intangible assets,

- property and eguipment,

- Recognition of other financial and non-financial assets and labilities,

The initial purchase price allocation 15 ingluded in the consolidated financial statements, Subsequent
adjusiments will occur during the measurement period when the company completes its estimate of the
fair values of the asseis acquired and the liabilities assumed. Accounting for the fair value of the
financial assets and liabilities acquired from Elm International Company and Wasat National Training
and Education Company is provisional due to the inherent complexity and discretion associated with
idemtifying intangible assets and determining the fair value of intangible assets and items included in
the statement of financial position.
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33. ACOUIRING SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
A- Elm International Schools Company

As of August 1, 2020, the company acquired 100% of the capital of the International Elm Schools
Company in exchange for a payment of 40 million Sawdi rivals, and thus the company became
controdling the Elm International Company. The activity of Elm International Company is as shown in
Mote (1} It qualifies as a commercial company as defined in IFRS 3. The Elm International Schools
Company was acquired to develop the group’s operations.

The book value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired from Elm International Schools
Company amounted to SR 283,624, Goodwill was recognized in the amount of 5K 39,716,376, which

represents amounts in excess of the net book value of the identifiable net azsels acquired.

The fair values have been determined based on the professional experience and judgment of the valuer,
taking inte account prevailing market conditions, current conditions of the assets and sources of market
information. The valuation was carried out by an independent valuator according 1o international
valuation standards. The valuation results were arrived at by reference to open market value models.

The process of allocating the purchase price was carried out by an independent third party on the basis
of the valuation report of the independent expert.

The legal procedures related to the purchase of the Elm International Company were completed during
the year, and a no-objection approval was obtained from the General Authority for Competition

The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of the scquisition are as follows;

Note Fair value

Property and equipment, net L 1,742,211
Acoount receivables 2,970,736
Prepayments and other current assets 586,234
Cash and cash equivalents 1,207,778
Actunrial reserve 224,062
Employee post employvment benefits |9-2 (1,534,035)
Revenuve received in advanced (1,080,145)
Account Payabie (233,929)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (B04,194)
Zakat provision 22-:C (432,004
Due toa related party {1,365, 0040)
Total of the identifiable asseis and liabilities acquired 283,624
Gipodwil| 8 39,716,376
Total 40,004, D0
N I I L § I o

Accrued amounts 40,00, 000
Cash and cash equivalents (1,207,778)
Total 38,792,332
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33. ACQUIRING SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
Wasat National Training and Education Company

As of 1 August 2020, the company acquired 52% of the capital of the Wasat National Training and
Education Company in exchange for emptying a plot of land owned by the company under deed Mo,
610121031192 for the benefit of Wasat National Training and Education Company, with a book value
of 20,099 200 Saudi riyals, and thus the company became controlling the Wasat Mational Training and
Education Company. The activity of Wasat National Training and Education Company i as shown in
Mote (1) It gualifies as a commercial company as defined in IFRS 3. Wasat National Training and
Education Company was acquired to develop the group's operations, The book value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities acquired from Wasal Mational Training and Education Company amounied io
3,391,844 Saudi rivals. Goodwill was recognized in the amount of SAR 8,583 825, which represents
amounts in excess of the net book value of the identifiable net assets acquired.

The fair values have been determined based on the professional experience and judgment of the valuer,
considering prevailing market conditions, current conditions of the assets and sources of market
information. The valuation was carried out by an independent valuator according to infernational
valuntion stamdards, The valuation resulis were arfived al by reference o open market value models,
The process of allocating the purchase price was carried out by an independent third party on the basis
of the valuation report of the independent expert.

The legal procedures related to the purchase of Al Wasat National Schools Company for Education and
Training were completed during the vear, and a no-objection approval was obtained from the General
Autherity for Competition.

The assets and ligbilities recognized as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

¥

Note Fair value

Property and equipment, net & BEE.947
Right-of-use assets, net 9 1,147 602
Acoount receivibles 2A10671
Prepayments and other current assets 651,241
Cash and cash equivalenis 448,243
Employee post employment benefits 19-2 (591,132)
Lease liabilities under right-of-use pssets g (1,198,386)
Zakat provision 22-C (235.342)
Total of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired 3.591.844
Cioodwill B 8,583,515
Total 12,175,669
- ! T Cel

Accrued amounts 12,175,669
Cash and cash equivalents (448.243)
Total 11,717,426

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On Muharram 1, 1443H, corresponding to August 9, 2021, Ataa Educational Company completed all
procedures related 10 the acquisition and transfer of ownership of the shares of the Arab Group for
Education and Training Company (& closed joint stock company) from the sellers to Ataa Educational
Company in retum for a payment of 138 million Saudi rivals.

35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2021 have been approved by the Board
of Directors on 20 Safar 1443H (corresponding 10 28 September 2021).
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